
2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley, CA 94704      510-981-6195      510-548-1240 (TDD)     510-981-6111 fax      BOLT@berkeleyca.gov 

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

REGULAR MEETING 

Thursday, October 10, 2024 

AGENDA 

6:30 PM 

LOCATION 

West Branch 
1125 University Avenue 

Commission Members: 
Amy Roth, President; Sophie Hahn, Vice President; Tanir Ami; Beverly Greene, Priscilla Villanueva 

To submit an e-mail comment during the meeting to be read aloud during public comment, email 
BOLT@berkeleyca.gov with the Subject Line in this format: “PUBLIC COMMENT ITEM ##.” Please 
observe a 150-word limit. Time limits on public comments will apply. Written comments will be entered into 
the public record. 
This meeting will be conducted in accordance with the Brown Act, Government Code Section 54953. Any 
member of the public may attend this meeting. Questions regarding this matter may be addressed to 
Jacqui Rodriguez, Administrative Secretary, (510) 981-6102. The Board of Library Trustees may take 
action related to any subject listed on the agenda. 
I. PRELIMINARY MATTERS
A. Call to Order
B. Ceremonial Matters: In addition to those items listed on the agenda, the President may add

additional ceremonial matters.
C. Public Comment – Limited to items on this agenda

Speakers are allowed 3 minutes each for up to 10 speakers; if more than 10 individuals have filled
out and submitted cards to speak, the time for all speakers will be reduced to 2 minutes per
person and if more than 20 individuals have submitted speaker’s cards, the time per person will be
reduced to one minute each, for a maximum of one hour of public comment.

D. Comments from Library Unions
For regular meetings of the BOLT, representatives from the three unions representing Library
employees may address BOLT, with a total time limit of 15 minutes. If all three (3) unions have
representatives present and wish to speak, each union shall receive 5 minutes to address BOLT. If
only two (2) unions have representatives present and wishing to speak, each union shall receive 7.5
minutes to address BOLT, for a total of 15 minutes. If only one (1) union has representatives present
and wishing to speak, that union shall receive 15 minutes to address BOLT. The Secretary shall, at
the start of the Comment from Library Union item, ask union representatives who wish to speak to
identify themselves and which union they represent. The Secretary shall then determine the
appropriate allocation of speaking time according to the rules stated herein.
i. SEIU, LOCAL 1021 (Maintenance and Clerical Units)
ii. SEIU, LOCAL 1021 (Community Services and PTRLA Units)
iii. Public Employees Union, LOCAL 1

E. Comments from Board of Library Trustees
II. CONSENT CALENDAR
The Board will consider removal and addition of items to the Consent Calendar prior to voting on the 
Consent Calendar. All items remaining on the Consent Calendar will be approved in one motion. 
A. Minutes of September 4, 2024 Regular Meeting

From: Tess Mayer, Director of Library Services
Recommendation: Adopt the resolution to approve the minutes of the September 4, 2024, Regular
Meeting of the Board of Library Trustees.

B. Fiscal Year 2024 Annual Gift Report to City Council
From: Nneka Gallaread, Administrative and Fiscal Services Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a resolution to approve annual reporting to the City Council of gifts received
in FY 2024 as mandated by CC Resolution No. 65,444-N.S.

Page 1 of 75

mailto:BOLT@berkeleyca.gov
mailto:BOLT@berkeleyca.gov


Board of Library Trustees - Regular Meeting Thursday, October 10, 2024 Page 2 

2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley, CA 94704      510-981-6195      510-548-1240 (TDD)      510-981-6111 fax      BOLT@ci.berkeley.ca.us 

C. Authorization to Open the Central Library and all Branches One Hour Late to Allow Adequate 
Time for All-Staff Meetings 
From: Tess Mayer, Director of Library Services 
Recommendation: Adopt a resolution to open the Central Library and all Branch Libraries one hour 
later on January 31, April 25, July 25, and October 31, 2025, to allow adequate time for the all-staff 
meetings. 
 

D. 2025 Regular Meeting Schedule for the Board of Library Trustees 
From: Tess Mayer, Director of Library Services 
Recommendation: Adopt a resolution approving dates, times and locations for the 2025 regular 
meeting schedule for the Board of Library Trustees. 
 

E. Contract Amendment: Contract No. 31900159 with Pride Industries One 
From: Henry Bankhead, Deputy Director of Library Services 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution to amend Contract No. 31900159 with Pride Industries One to 
provide for an increase of $550,000 thereby increasing the contract’s allowable not-to-exceed amount 
to $2,550,000 and to extend the term end date to June 30, 2025. 

III. ACTION CALENDAR 
A. Nominations for the Selection of the President  

From: Tess Mayer, Director of Library Services 
Recommendation: Each year the Board of Library Trustees elects Officers for a one-year term. 
Following discussion, the Board will nominate Trustees to sit as President, for the term commencing 
November 7, 2024, for a one-year term. 

B. Nominations for the Selection of the Vice-President 
From: Tess Mayer, Director of Library Services 
Recommendation: Each year the Board of Library Trustees elects Officers for a one-year term. 
Following discussion, the Board will nominate Trustees to sit as Vice-President, for the term 
commencing November 7, 2024, for a one-year term. 

IV. INFORMATION REPORTS 
All items for discussion only and no final action. 
A. FYTD 2024 – 4th Quarter YTD Budget Report – Nneka Gallaread, Administrative and Fiscal Services 

Manager 
B. Sunday Hours Report (oral report) – Bill Kolb, Library Services Manager  
C. Monthly Library Director’s Report – Tess Mayer, Director of Library Services 
V. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS 
These items are not scheduled for discussion or action at this meeting. The Board of Library 
Trustees may schedule these items to the agenda of a future meeting. 
A. Discussion of items to be added to future agendas 
VI. ADJOURNMENT 
This meeting will be conducted in accordance with the Brown Act, Government Code Section 54953. Any 
member of the public may attend this meeting. Questions regarding this matter may be addressed to 
Tess Mayer, 510-981-6195, tmayer@berkeleyca.gov. 
Communications to Berkeley boards, commissions or committees are public record and will become part 
of the City’s electronic records, which are accessible through the City’s website. Please note: E-mail 
addresses, names, addresses, and other contact information are not required but, if included in any 
communication to a City board, commission, or committee, will become part of the public record. If you 
do not want your e-mail address or any other contact information to be made public, you may deliver 
communications via U.S. Postal Service or in person to the secretary of the relevant board, commission, 
or committee. If you do not want your contact information included in the public record, please do not 

Page 2 of 75

mailto:tmayer@berkeleyca.gov


Board of Library Trustees - Regular Meeting Thursday, October 10, 2024 Page 3 

2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley, CA 94704      510-981-6195      510-548-1240 (TDD)      510-981-6111 fax      BOLT@ci.berkeley.ca.us 

include that information in your communication. Please contact the secretary to the relevant board, 
commission, or committee for further information. 
Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the commission regarding any item on this agenda 
will be made available for public inspection at the Berkeley Public Library Administration Office located at 
2090 Kittredge Street - 3rd Floor Admin Wing, Berkeley, CA 94704. 

COMMUNICATION ACCESS INFORMATION: 
This meeting is being held in a wheelchair-accessible location. To request a disability-related 
accommodation(s) to participate in the meeting, including auxiliary aids or services, please 
contact the Disability Services specialist at 981-6418 (V) or 981-6347 (TDD) at least three 
business days before the meeting date. Please refrain from wearing scented products to this 
meeting. 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
I hereby certify that the agenda for this special meeting of the Board of Library Trustees was posted at 
the display case located near the walkway in front of the Maudelle Shirek Building, 2134 Martin Luther 
King Jr. Way and in front of the Central Public Library at 2090 Kittredge Street as well as on the Berkeley 
Public Library’s website, on 10/3/2024 

//s//

Tess Mayer, Director of Library Services 
Serving as Secretary to the Board of Library 
Trustees 

Communications:  
Date Name Subject 

9/19/2024 Ivi Kolasi Maker space, computing workshops and events at the library 

Page 3 of 75



Page 4 of 75



II Consent Calendar 
Item A 

Wednesday, September 4, 2024  BOLT Regular Meeting Minutes DRAFT v2 Page 1 

MINUTES 
Berkeley Public Library - Board of Library Trustees Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, September 4, 2024  
6:30 PM 

West Branch Meeting Room – 1125 University Avenue, Berkeley, CA 94702 

Board of Library Trustees: 
Amy Roth, President Tanir Ami 
Sophie Hahn, Vice President Beverly Greene 

Priscilla Villanueva 

I. PRELIMINARY MATTERS

A copy of the agenda packet can be found at http://www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org/about/board-library-trustees 

A. Call to order:  6:34 p.m. 

Present: Trustees Ami, Greene, Hahn, Roth and Villanueva. 

Absent: None 

Also Present: Tess Mayer, Director of Library Services; Henry Bankhead, Deputy Director; Aimee 
Reeder, Associate Management Analyst; Bill Kolb, Library Services Manager; Bae 
Smith, Supervising Librarian; Jacqui Rodriguez, Administrative Secretary. 

B. Ceremonial Matters: None

C. Public Comments: 0 speakers

D. Comments from Library Unions:

1. SEIU, LOCAL 1021 (Community Services and PTRLA Units) – 0 speakers
2. SEIU, LOCAL 1021 (Maintenance and Clerical Units) – 0 speakers
3. Public Employees Union, LOCAL 1 – 0 speakers

E. Comments from Board of Library Trustees –

1. Trustee Roth welcomes Trustee Villanueva.
2. Trustee Greene comments on looking forward to Sunday hours being restored, to meet the

community’s requests.
3. Trustee Hahn welcomes Trustee Villanueva.
4. Trustee Villanueva comments on the enjoyable experience and excitement of serving the

community; she appreciates the Board for their welcome.

II. PRESENTATIONS
A. Oral Staff Report – State of the Collection

From: Bae Smith, Supervising Librarian-Collection Services
Action: Received

III. CONSENT CALENDAR
Action: M/S/C Trustee Ami / Trustee Hahn to adopt Resolution No. R24-090 to approve the consent 
calendar as presented. 
Vote: All Ayes.  

A. Approve Minutes of the July 11, 2024 Regular Meeting
From: Tess Mayer, Director of Library Services
Recommendation: Adopt a resolution to approve the minutes of the July 11, 2024, Regular Meeting of
the Board of Library Trustees.
Contact: Tess Mayer, Director of Library Services
Action: Adopted Resolution No. R24-091 to approve the minutes of July 11, 2024 as submitted.

B. Contract Amendment: Contract No. 32200222 with Konica Minolta Business Solutions U.S.A.
From: Alicia Abramson, Manager, Library Information Technology

Page 5 of 75

http://www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org/about/board-library-trustees


II Consent Calendar 
Item A 

Wednesday, September 4, 2024  BOLT Regular Meeting Minutes DRAFT v2 Page 2 
 

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the Director of Library Services to amend Contract 
No.32200222 with Konica Minolta Business Solutions USA, Inc. by increasing the contracted not-to-exceed 
amount to $135,594 for the continuing provision of public use copiers and printers at all Library locations 
and extending the term date to end on October 31, 2027. 
Contact: Alicia Abramson, Manager, Library Information Technology 
Action: Adopted Resolution No. R24-092. 
 

F. Gann Override Measure Reauthorizing the Library Tax Approved in 1988 
 From: Tess Mayer, Director of Library Services 
 Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution to support the passage of Measure AA – Article XIIIB GANN 
 Appropriations Limit Authorization on the November 5, 2024 ballot reauthorizing the City to spend 
 proceeds of the Library Relief Tax that was approved by the votes in 1988. 

Contact: Tess Mayer, Director of Library Services 
Action: Adopted Resolution No. R24-093. 

 
ACTION CALENDAR 
A.  Proposed Personnel Changes  

From: Tess Mayer, Director of Library Services 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution approving the conversion of three vacant positions into two new 
positions, a full-time Library Assistant and a .75 FTE Librarian, and increased hours of one 30-hour Library 
Assistant position to full-time. 
Contact: Tess Mayer, Director of Library Services 
Action: M/S/C (Trustee Hahn / Trustee Ami) to adopt Resolution No. R24-094. 
Vote:  All Ayes. 
 
Trustee Hahn exited the meeting at 7:34 PM. 
 

IV. INFORMATION REPORTS  

A. Review Rules for Nominations for the Selection of Board President and Vice-President  
From: Tess Mayer, Director of Library Services 
Action: Received 

 
B. Monthly Library Director’s Report 

   From: Tess Mayer, Director of Library Services 
   Action: Received 
 

V. AGENDA BUILDING 

The next regular meeting will be held on Thursday, October 10, 2024, at 6:30 PM. Future meeting topics 
identified include a presentation on Sunday hours, nominations for the selection of Board President and Vice 
President, close-of-year summary finance report, and a gift report. 

VI. ADJOURNMENT 
Action: M/S/C (Trustee Greene / Trustee Villanueva) to adjourn the meeting. 
Vote: All Ayes. 

Adjourned at 7:56 PM. 

This is to certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the regular meeting of 
Wednesday, September 4, 2024 as approved by the Board of Library Trustees. 

//s// ___________________________________________  Tess Mayer, Director of Library Services, acting as 
secretary to BOLT 

 
Attachments:   

1. State of Collection Presentation  
  

Page 6 of 75



Collection Services
BO

LT SEPTEM
BER 4, 2024

I
I
 
C
o
n
s
e
n
t
 
C
a
l
e
n
d
a
r
 

I
t
e
m
 
A
 

A
t
t
a
c
h
m
e
n
t
 
1

Page 7 of 75



Collection 
Services Team

Leticia Cendejas
Jonathan Esm

enjaud
Lilia Flores
M

ecca Freem
an

Jose G
uerrero

Kauru (Cindy) Kum
ano

Rosie M
erlin

Julia W
isw

ell

I
I
 
C
o
n
s
e
n
t
 
C
a
l
e
n
d
a
r
 

I
t
e
m
 
A
 

A
t
t
a
c
h
m
e
n
t
 
1

Page 8 of 75



Collection Services is responsible for the stew
ardship 

of library collections, including, acquisition, 
cataloging, deselection, physical processing, and 
m

anaging of library m
aterials in all form

ats.

Collection Practices

I
I
 
C
o
n
s
e
n
t
 
C
a
l
e
n
d
a
r
 

I
t
e
m
 
A
 

A
t
t
a
c
h
m
e
n
t
 
1

Page 9 of 75



Collection  Statistics
Fiscal Year

23/24
Physical M

aterials
1,429,524

E-M
aterials

941,330

Total
2,370,854

0

500,000

1,000,000

1,500,000

2,000,000

2,500,000

3,000,000

23/24
22/23

21/22
20/21

19/20
18/19

17/18

FY Circulation Statistics

Physical M
aterials

E-M
aterials

Total

I
I
 
C
o
n
s
e
n
t
 
C
a
l
e
n
d
a
r
 

I
t
e
m
 
A
 

A
t
t
a
c
h
m
e
n
t
 
1

Page 10 of 75



Collection Statistics -Additions

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

70,000

80,000

90,000

23/24
22/23

21/22
20/21

19/20

Item
s Added to Collection

Physical Item
s Added

E-item
s Added

Total

I
I
 
C
o
n
s
e
n
t
 
C
a
l
e
n
d
a
r
 

I
t
e
m
 
A
 

A
t
t
a
c
h
m
e
n
t
 
1

Page 11 of 75



Collection Diversity

I
I
 
C
o
n
s
e
n
t
 
C
a
l
e
n
d
a
r
 

I
t
e
m
 
A
 

A
t
t
a
c
h
m
e
n
t
 
1

Page 12 of 75



Fiscal Year FY24
◦Continued reclass of graphic novel series titles
◦Continued w

ork on shifting of collections at Central Library
◦International Language Collections expanded to all locations  in juvenile, teen,

and adult areas
◦Co ntinued re-classification project –

aw
ay from

 alpha num
eric call num

bers
◦Diversity audit

I
I
 
C
o
n
s
e
n
t
 
C
a
l
e
n
d
a
r
 

I
t
e
m
 
A
 

A
t
t
a
c
h
m
e
n
t
 
1

Page 13 of 75



FY 24 
Continued
Exam

ple of addition to Genre 
Heading: “M

aterialesen
espan̋ol.”

I
I
 
C
o
n
s
e
n
t
 
C
a
l
e
n
d
a
r
 

I
t
e
m
 
A
 

A
t
t
a
c
h
m
e
n
t
 
1

Page 14 of 75



FY 24 
Continued
Exam

ple of addition of Subject 
Headings: Added subject heading 
Transphobic w

orks

I
I
 
C
o
n
s
e
n
t
 
C
a
l
e
n
d
a
r
 

I
t
e
m
 
A
 

A
t
t
a
c
h
m
e
n
t
 
1

Page 15 of 75



Fiscal 24 Continued
Expansion of Digital O

fferings
•

ASL m
odule for M

ango Language  database
•

Added sim
ultaneous use Artist W

orks and All Access Com
ics in O

verdrive
•

Added CreativeBug

Staff training
•

Vendor training for staff expanded

I
I
 
C
o
n
s
e
n
t
 
C
a
l
e
n
d
a
r
 

I
t
e
m
 
A
 

A
t
t
a
c
h
m
e
n
t
 
1

Page 16 of 75



FY 25 Projects
•Collection Audit

•Com
plete re-classification of graphic novel series titles

•Continue re-classification aw
ay from

 alpha-num
eric call num

bers

•Continue staff training

•Continue shifting of Central adult collections

•Evaluate purchasing practices for e-book and e-audio m
aterials

•Evaluation of print expenditures

I
I
 
C
o
n
s
e
n
t
 
C
a
l
e
n
d
a
r
 

I
t
e
m
 
A
 

A
t
t
a
c
h
m
e
n
t
 
1

Page 17 of 75



Thank you.
Q

uestions?

I
I
 
C
o
n
s
e
n
t
 
C
a
l
e
n
d
a
r
 

I
t
e
m
 
A
 

A
t
t
a
c
h
m
e
n
t
 
1

Page 18 of 75



II Consent Calendar 
Item B

CONSENT CALENDAR 
October 10, 2024 

TO: Board of Library Trustees 

FROM: Nneka Gallaread, Administrative and Fiscal Services Manager 

SUBJECT: Fiscal Year 2024 ANNUAL GIFT REPORT  

RECOMMENDATION 
Adopt a resolution to approve annual reporting to the City Council of gifts received in FY 2024 as mandated 
by City Council Resolution No. 65,444-N.S. 

FISCAL IMPACT 
There is no fiscal impact from this report. 

BACKGROUND 
The Open Government Ordinance (Ord. 7,166-N.S.) approved by the City Council in 2011 includes a section on 
the acceptance of gifts of $1,000 or more.  At the July 13, 2011 regular meeting of the Board, Resolution R11-051 
was adopted, requesting City Council delegate to the Board of Library Trustees the authority to accept on behalf 
of the Library any gifts of funds, goods, or services up to $200,000.  On September 20, 2011 the Council considered 
the item and approved it on consent by Resolution No. 65,444-N.S.   

The approved Council resolution includes a stipulation, “Mandating annual reporting from the Board of Library 
Trustees of gifts in excess of $1,000 in aggregate in an informational report to be presented before the Council 
on a regular meeting agenda.”  Information relevant to this report has been prepared by staff for Board 
consideration and review prior to communication to the City Council.  The submitted report will fulfill the 
ordinance’s obligation covering the period from July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024. 

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS 
The Board of Library Trustees accepts gifts throughout the fiscal year; for the period from July 1, 2023 
through June 30, 2024 the following gifts equal to or in excess of $1,000 aggregate by donor were 
received and accepted into Library Fund accounts and will be reported to the City Council: The Friends 
of the Berkeley Public Library for $150,600, the Berkeley Public Library Foundation for $165,717.24, and 
seven other donations totaling $1,175.  

Page 19 of 75



II Consent Calendar 
Item B

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
CONSENT CALENDAR REPORT 
FY 2024 Annual Gift Report Page 2 

FY 2024 Gifts and Foundation Receipts 
Report 

to 
Council 

Donor Value Fund Notes 

Yes Individual ≤ $1,000 $1,175.00 101 Individual donations of $1,000 or less 
Yes Friends of BPL $150,600.00 104 Library programs and materials support 
Yes BPL Foundation $165,717.24 105 Library Grants and Projects 

Total $317,492.24 

FURTHER ACTION 
None.  

Attachments: 

1. Resolution

Page 20 of 75



II Consent Calendar 
Item B 

Attachment 1

BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 
RESOLUTION NO: 24-#### 

FY 2024 ANNUAL LIBRARY GIFT REPORT TO THE CITY COUNCIL 

WHEREAS, the Berkeley Public Library regularly accepts and receives gifts from two support organizations, 
the Berkeley Public Library Foundation and the Friends of the Berkeley Public Library, as well as individuals 
and groups; and 

WHEREAS, following passage of the Open Government Ordinance by the City Council, the City Council 
delegated to the Library Board of Trustees the authority to accept any gifts of funds, goods, or services 
made to the Library up to $200,000 that do not include unduly restrictive conditions on their use, and all 
gifts from the Library Foundation constituting payments toward the Foundation’s Branch Library FF&E 
Campaign; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council at a regular meeting on September 20, 2011 approved on the consent calendar 
Resolution No. 65,444-N.S. , which included a requirement that the Board of Library Trustees report annually to 
Council gifts in excess of $1,000 in aggregate; and 

WHEREAS, this year’s report covers the fiscal year period from July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024; and 

WHEREAS, gifts to the Library subject to reporting to the City Council during this period are: The Friends of the 
Berkeley Public Library for $150,600, the Berkeley Public Library Foundation for $165,717.24, and seven 
other donations totaling $1,175; and 

BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley hereby authorizes the 
submission of the Library’s annual gift report to the Berkeley City Council.  

ADOPTED by the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley at a regular meeting held on October 
10, 2024 by the following vote: 

AYES:  
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTENTIONS: 

 ____________________________________________ 
Amy Roth, President 

 ____________________________________________ 
Tess Mayer, Director of Library Services 
Serving as Secretary of the Board of Library Trustees 

Page 21 of 75



Page 22 of 75



II Consent Calendar 
Item C

CONSENT CALENDAR 
October 10, 2024 

2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-6195 ● Website: www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org 

To: Board of Library Trustees 

From: Tess Mayer, Director of Library Services 

Subject: Authorization to Open the Central Library and all Branches One Hour Late to Allow Adequate 
Time for All-Staff Meetings 

RECOMMENDATION 

Adopt a resolution to open the Central Library and all Branch Libraries one hour later on January 31, April 
25, July 25, and October 31, 2025, to allow adequate time for the all-staff meeting. 

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION 
This report will have no fiscal impacts. 

BACKGROUND 
All-Staff meetings are held in the Central Library from 9 AM to 10:30 AM up to four times annually. To 
enable travel time back to branches, the Library has delayed opening until 11:00 AM as an accommodation. 

All scheduled Library staff are expected to attend these meetings. Full-time employees who wish to attend 
but who are not scheduled to work during that time may adjust their schedules to accommodate the 
meetings. Employees who work less than full-time and who are not scheduled to work may add the 
appropriate amount of time to their timesheets that week if their schedules cannot be adjusted.  

Items generally included on the all-staff meeting agenda include: 

• Introductions of new staff

• Important news announcements (e.g. direction on political activity, changes to staff intranet,
summer reading program details, upcoming projects, budget updates, recognition of staff
achievements, etc.)

• Presentations by staff or guests on topics relevant to all (e.g. demonstrations of new equipment,
team and/or committee reports, new policy overviews, strategic planning and organizational
priorities updates)

All-Staff meetings allow the Director and managers the opportunity to distribute staff awards, announce 
updates, and communicate pertinent information directly to all personnel. There is intrinsic value to Library 
staff having the ability to meet as a team and interact with people they do not usually see. By delaying the 
Library’s opening by one hour on these four mornings, continued staff participation in the meetings is 
anticipated, and in-depth topics will continue to be covered with adequate time for discussion. 

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS 
At the December 10, 2008 BOLT meeting, at the request of the Director of Library Services, the Board 
authorized the Library to open an hour later on up to four Fridays throughout the course of the 2009 
calendar year to allow additional time for more productive meetings and provide ample time for staff to 
prepare for opening. Since this time, this schedule change has permitted effective, informative meetings, 

Page 23 of 75

file://LIBSTORAGE02/Admin/Admin%20Assistant/BOLT/Templates%20and%20Forms/www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org


BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
CONSENT CALENDAR REPORT 
Authorization to open the Central Library and All Branches one hour late to allow 
adequate time for All-Staff Meetings Page 2 

with enough time for staff to prepare Libraries to open. Management review of the extended meetings has 
concluded that they continue to provide advantageous circumstances for in-depth discussion of policy 
implementation and important planning information related to projects and initiatives. Library staff propose 
continuing this practice, with the goal of using this time to improve communication regarding policies and 
other topics of professional and operational value to employees. 

FUTURE ACTION 
No future action is required. 

CONTACT PERSON 
Tess Mayer, Director of Library Services, Library, 510-981-6195 

Attachments: 
1: Resolution 

Page 24 of 75



II Consent Calendar 
Item C 

Attachment 1

BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 
RESOLUTION NO: 24-#### 

2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-6195 ● Website: www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org 

AUTHORIZATION TO OPEN THE CENTRAL LIBRARY AND ALL BRANCHES ONE HOUR LATE TO ALLOW 
ADEQUATE TIME FOR ALL STAFF MEETINGS IN 2025 

WHEREAS, the Director of Library Services convenes quarterly meetings of all Library staff, including branch 
staffs, on the fifth Friday of select months which have five Fridays; and 

WHEREAS, these meetings allow staff to speak to each other about special projects, services and other 
relevant issues, and permit the Director and managers the opportunity to recognize staff, announce 
updates, and communicate pertinent information directly to all personnel; and 

WHEREAS, the Library began this practice in 2008, with the Library opening late at 11:00 a.m. with no 
detrimental effect on operations; and 

WHEREAS, by delaying the Library’s opening by one hour on these designated mornings, continued staff 
participation in the meetings is anticipated, and in-depth topics will continue to be covered with adequate 
time for discussion; and 

WHEREAS, opening an hour later on all-staff meeting days has provided effective and productive meetings, 
with adequate time for Library staff to prepare for opening. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley to authorize the 
Director of Library Services to open the Central Library and all Branch Libraries one hour later on January 31, 
April 25, July 25, and October 31, 2025, to allow adequate time for the all-staff meeting in order to 
accommodate the all-staff meetings and allow adequate time for Library staff to open the libraries.  

ADOPTED by the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley at a regular meeting held on October 10, 
2024 by the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTENTIONS: 

 _____________________________________________  
Amy Roth, President 

 _____________________________________________  
Tess Mayer, Director of Library Services 
Serving as Secretary to the Board of Library Trustee 

Page 25 of 75

file://LIBSTORAGE02/Admin/Admin%20Assistant/BOLT/Templates%20and%20Forms/www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org


Page 26 of 75



II Consent Calendar 
Item D

CONSENT CALENDAR 
October 10, 2024 

2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-6195 ● Website: www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org 

To: Board of Library Trustees 

From: Tess Mayer, Director of Library Services 

Subject: 2025 Regular Meeting Schedule for the Board of Library Trustees 

RECOMMENDATION 
Adopt a resolution approving dates, times and locations for the 2025 regular meeting schedule for the Board 
of Library Trustees. 

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION 
This report will have no fiscal impacts. 

BACKGROUND 
The Board of Library Trustees approves the following year’s regular meeting schedule during one of its 
meetings toward the end of each year. 

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS 
The regular meetings of the Board of Library Trustees have generally been held on the first Wednesday of 
each month at 6:30 p.m. at the West Branch Library, 1125 University Ave.  The meetings may be held at other 
locations, for example when that month’s staff report features a branch.   

The Board may choose to change any part of their regular meeting schedule, including the date, time or 
location and to schedule special meetings as needed in accordance with the Brown Act and the City of Berkeley 
Commissioners’ Manual. During August, the Board has chosen to follow the City Council and other City 
commissions and take a meeting recess. 

City Council: 
Winter Recess: (December 11, 2024 – January 20, 2025) 

January 21, 2025  
February 11 & February 25 

 March 11, March 18 & March 25  
Spring Recess: (March 26 – April 14, 2025)  

April 15 & April 29  
May 6 & May 20 

June 3, June 17 and June 24 
July 8, July 22 and July 29  

Summer Recess: July 30 – September 8  
September 9, September 16 and September 30  

October 14 and October 28  
November 4 and November 18  

December 2  
Winter Recess: (December 3, 2025 – January 26, 2026) 

Page 27 of 75

file://LIBSTORAGE02/Admin/Admin%20Assistant/BOLT/Templates%20and%20Forms/www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org


II Consent Calendar 
Item D

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
CONSENT CALENDAR REPORT 
2025 Meeting Schedule for the Board of Library Trustees Page 2 

The proposed 2025 Board of Library Trustees Meeting Schedule is attached as Attachment 2. 

FUTURE ACTION: 
No further action is required. 

CONTACT PERSON 
Tess Mayer, Director of Library Services, Library, 510-981-6195 

Attachments: 
1. Resolution
2. City Policy Regarding the Scheduling of City Meetings on All Significant Religious Holidays
3. Proposed 2025 Board of Library Trustee Meeting Schedule

Page 28 of 75



II Consent Calendar 
Item D 

Attachment 1

BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 
RESOLUTION NO: 24-#### 

2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-6195 ● Website: www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org 

APPROVAL OF THE 2025 REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE FOR THE BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

WHEREAS, the Board of Library Trustees approves the next year’s regular meeting schedule for the Board of 
Library Trustees during one of its last meetings each year; and 

WHEREAS, the regular meetings of the Board of Library Trustees have been held on the first Wednesday of 
each month at 6:30 p.m. at the West Branch Library, 1125 University Avenue; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has chosen to follow the City Council and other City commissions and take a meeting 
recess during the month of August; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley to approve the 
2025 regular meeting schedule for the Board of Library Trustees as once per month (Generally on the first 
Wednesday of the month) at 6:30 P.M. except for August when there is a meeting recess, and except for 
October 8, scheduled after the first Wednesday of the month in observance of Yom Kippur.  

ADOPTED by the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley at a regular meeting held on October 10, 
2024 by the following vote: 

AYES:  
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTENTIONS: 

 _______________________________________________ 
 Amy Roth, President 

 _______________________________________________ 
 Tess Mayer, Director of Library Services 
 Serving as Secretary to the Board of Library Trustee 

Page 29 of 75

file://LIBSTORAGE02/Admin/Admin%20Assistant/BOLT/Templates%20and%20Forms/www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org


Page 30 of 75



C
ity P

o
licy R

e
gard

in
g th

e
 Sch

e
d

u
lin

g o
f C

ity M
e

e
tin

gs o
n

 A
ll Sign

ifican
t R

e
ligio

u
s H

o
lid

ays

R
e

ligio
n

H
o

lid
ay

Sh
in

to
N

ew
 Year 

1
/1

/2
0

2
5

th
ru

1
/3

/2
0

2
5

H
in

d
u

M
akar San

kran
ti

1
/1

4
/2

0
2

5

C
u

ltu
ral

C
h

in
ese

 N
ew

 Ye
ar (Eve, D

ay, Lan
te

rn
 Festival)

1
/2

8
, 1

/2
9

, 2
/1

2

Isalm
R

am
ad

an
 (Eve &

 First N
igh

t)
2

/2
8

/2
0

2
4

th
ru

3
/1

/2
0

2
5

H
in

d
u

H
o

li
3

/1
4

/2
0

2
5

C
u

ltu
ral

N
o

w
ru

z*
3

/2
0

/2
0

2
5

Islam
Eid

 al-Fitr
3

/3
0

/2
0

2
5

th
ru

3
/3

1
/2

0
2

5

Jew
ish

P
asso

ver N
igh

ts 1
 &

 2
 (7

*, 8
*)

4
/1

2
 - 4

/1
3

  (4
/1

9
, 4

/2
0

)

C
h

ristian
G

o
o

d
 Frid

ay
4

/1
8

/2
0

2
5

C
h

ristian
Easte

r Su
n

d
ay

4
/2

0
/2

0
2

5

B
u

d
d

h
ist

V
esak

5
/1

2
/2

0
2

5

Jew
ish

Sh
avu

o
t*

6
/1

/2
0

2
5

th
ru

6
/3

/2
0

2
5

Islam
Eid

 al-A
d

h
a

6
/6

/2
0

2
5

th
ru

6
/7

/2
0

2
5

Sh
in

to
O

b
o

n
 C

e
rem

o
n

y*
8

/1
3

/2
0

2
5

th
ru

8
/1

5
/2

0
2

5

Jew
ish

R
o

sh
 H

ash
an

ah
9

/2
2

/2
0

2
5

th
ru

9
/2

4
/2

0
2

5

Jew
ish

Yo
m

 K
ip

p
u

r
1

0
/1

/2
0

2
5

th
ru

1
0

/2
/2

0
2

5

H
in

d
u

D
u

sseh
ra

1
0

/2
/2

0
2

5

Jew
ish

Su
kko

t (1
st D

ay)*
1

0
/6

/2
0

2
5

th
ru

1
0

/7
/2

0
2

5

Jew
ish

Sh
m

in
i A

tzeret/ Sim
ch

at To
rah

*
1

0
/1

3
/2

0
2

5
th

ru
1

0
/1

5
/2

0
2

5

H
in

d
u

D
iw

ali 
1

0
/2

0
/2

0
2

5

B
ah

a’i Faith
B

irth
 o

f B
ab

1
0

/2
2

/2
0

2
5

B
ah

a’i Faith
B

irth
 o

f B
ah

a’u
’llah

1
0

/2
3

/2
0

2
5

Jew
ish

C
h

an
u

kah
 (1

st n
igh

t)
1

2
/1

4
/2

0
2

5

C
h

ristian
C

h
ristm

as
1

2
/2

5
/2

0
2

5

C
u

ltu
ral

K
w

an
zaa

1
2

/2
6

/2
0

2
5

th
ru

1
/1

/2
0

2
6

Jew
ish

Sh
ab

b
at (Frid

ay su
n

set to
 Satu

rd
ay su

n
set)*

W
e

ekly

*
M

eetin
g

s n
o

t p
ro

h
ib

ited
, b

u
t a

vo
id

 sch
ed

u
lin

g
 m

eetin
g

s if p
o

ssib
le

2
0

2
5

 D
ate(s)

P
u

rsu
an

t to
 R

eso
lu

tio
n

 N
o

. 7
0

,0
6

6
-N

.S., it is th
e p

o
licy o

f th
e C

ity to
 avo

id
 sch

ed
u

lin
g m

ee
tin

gs o
f C

ity Legislative B
o

d
ies (C

ity C
o

u
n

cil,

P
o

licy C
o

m
m

ittee
s, C

o
m

m
issio

n
s, Task Fo

rces) o
n

 religio
u

s h
o

lid
ays th

at in
co

rp
o

rate sign
ifican

t w
o

rk restrictio
n

s fo
r co

m
m

o
n

 o
b

servan
ce 

in
 th

e U
n

ited
 States. C

ity legislative b
o

d
ies m

u
st avo

id
 sch

ed
u

lin
g m

ee
tin

gs o
n

 th
e religio

u
s h

o
lid

ays listed
 b

elo
w

.

I
I
 
C
o
n
s
e
n
t
 
C
a
l
e
n
d
a
r
 

I
t
e
m
 
D

A
t
t
a
c
h
m
e
n
t
 
2

Page 31 of 75



Page 32 of 75



II Consent Calendar 
Item D 

Attachment 3 

Berkeley Public Library 
Board of Library Trustees 

2025 Regular Meeting Schedule 
1st Wednesday Dates (unless marked*) 

Regular Meeting Dates Location 

January 8, 2025* West Branch Library (1125 University Avenue) 
Shinto New Year January 1-3, 2025 

February 5, 2025 West Branch Library (1125 University Avenue) 

March 5, 2025 West Branch Library (1125 University Avenue) 

April 2, 2025 West Branch Library (1125 University Avenue) 

May 7, 2025 West Branch Library (1125 University Avenue) 

June 4, 2025 West Branch Library (1125 University Avenue) 

July 2, 2025 West Branch Library (1125 University Avenue) 

{No meeting in August} 

September 3, 2025 West Branch Library (1125 University Avenue) 

October 8, 2025* West Branch Library (1125 University Avenue) 
Yom Kippur begins on Wednesday, October 1 and ends Thursday, October 2, 2025. 

November 5, 2025 West Branch Library (1125 University Avenue) 

December 3, 2025  West Branch Library (1125 University Avenue) 

Page 33 of 75



Page 34 of 75



   

 

II Consent Calendar 
Item E 

 CONSENT CALENDAR 
 October 10, 2024 

 

2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-6195 ● Website: www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org 

To: Board of Library Trustees 

From: Henry Bankhead, Deputy Director of Library Services 

Subject: Contract Amendment: Contract No. 31900159 with Pride Industries One 

RECOMMENDATION 
Adopt a Resolution to amend Contract No. 31900159 with Pride Industries One to provide for an increase of 
$550,000 thereby increasing the contract’s allowable not-to-exceed amount to $2,550,000 and to extend 
the term end date to June 30, 2025. 

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION 
The Library, as a party to the citywide Request for Proposal (Specification No. 18-11213-C (Re-Issued)), benefited 
from derived economies of scale savings stemming from the competitive public solicitation delivered through a city-
wide bid in obtaining janitorial services through Pride Industries One. 

The FY 2024 Library Tax Fund (101) budget includes adequate funding to provide for ongoing custodial -
janitorial services in the following account: 101-22-242-272-0000-000-463-622110. 

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS 
In order to maintain janitorial services through June, 2025 the Library will require an additional $550,000 for the 
contract. 

BACKGROUND 
In 2008, the Library and City decided to join efforts with the intent to align the delivery of like services with a 
common vendor.  The goal was to better rationalize the list of active service providers and to gain economies of 
scale.  Nonetheless, the Library would retain control of its vendor agreements, as continues through to today, and 
consequently executes contracts separate from those of the City; and, thus preserves the Board of Library Trustees’ 
existing oversight responsibilities.  

Request for Proposal release Specification No. 18-11213-C (Re-Issued) closed for bids on Tuesday, October 23, 2018.  
Six (6) bids were received. PRIDE Industries was unanimously ranked first and Contract No. 31900159 was signed 
with them July 1, 2019. The amount of the contract was not to exceed 1,250,000 and the contract was through June 
30, 2022 with options to renew for 2 additional years. A contact extension was signed in June 2022, per the terms of 
the original contract, for an additional year, year four of the original contract, to extend the contract through June 
2024. 

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION  
A contract extension through June, 2025 and an additional $550,000 of funding for the contract will allow the library 
to maintain janitorial services provided by Pride Industries One until an overall City contract is negotiated for 
FY25/26. 

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED 
No alternative actions were considered.  A contract amendment and extension are required to continue 
janitorial service through June 2025. 

Page 35 of 75

file://LIBSTORAGE02/Admin/Admin%20Assistant/BOLT/Templates%20and%20Forms/www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org


II Consent Calendar 
Item E

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
CONSENT CALENDAR REPORT 
Contract Amendment: Contract No. 31900159 with Pride Industries One Page 2 

CONTACT PERSON 
Henry Bankhead, Deputy Director of Library Services, 510-981-6195 

Attachments: 

1: Resolution 

Page 36 of 75



II Consent Calendar 
Item E  

Attachment 1 

BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 
RESOLUTION NO: 24-#### 

 

2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-6195 ● Website: www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org 

Contract Amendment: Contract No. 31900159 with Pride Industries One 
 
WHEREAS, On April 19, 2023, the Board of Library Trustees authorized, by Resolution No.: R23-013, a 
contract extension on Contract No. 31900159; and 

On May 17, 2019, the Board of Library Trustees authorized, by Resolution No.: R19-005, the Contract No. 
31900159; and 

WHEREAS, the Library and Pride Industries One entered into Contract Number 31900159 for the period from 
July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2022 in an amount not-to-exceed $1,250,000, for which Contract was 
authorized by the Director of Library Services; and 

WHEREAS, On June 13, 2022, the Director of Library Services extended Contract #31900159 by written 
notice per section 3.a. of the original contract from June 2022 to June, 2023; and 

WHEREAS, On June 13, 2024, the Director of Library Services extended Contract #31900159 by written 
notice per section 3.a. of the original contract from June 2024 to June, 2025; and 

WHEREAS, Pride Industries One has successfully fulfilled its contractual obligation to provide janitorial 
services as requested by the Library; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley adopt a 
Resolution to amend Contract #31900159 not-to-exceed amount to $2,555,000, and to extend the term end 
date to June 30, 2025.  

ADOPTED by the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley at a regular meeting held on Wednesday 
October 10, 2024 by the following vote: 

AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:   
ABSTENTIONS:  
  _______________________________________________  
 Amy Roth, President 
 
  _______________________________________________  
 Tess Mayer, Director of Library Services 
 Serving as Secretary to the Board of Library Trustee 
 

Page 37 of 75

file://LIBSTORAGE02/Admin/Admin%20Assistant/BOLT/Templates%20and%20Forms/www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org


Page 38 of 75



 

III Action Calendar 
Item A & B 

 ACTION CALENDAR 
 October 10, 2024 

 
To: Board of Library Trustees 

From: Tess Mayer, Director of Library Services 

Subject: Nominations for the Selection of Board President and Vice President 

INTRODUCTION  
Each year the Board of Library Trustees elects Officers for a one-year term. Following discussion, the Board 
will nominate Trustees to sit as President and Vice President, for the term commencing November 7, 2024 
for a one-year term. 

The President and Vice President meet at least monthly with the Secretary to prepare Board business and 
discuss agenda matters.   

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION 
This report will have no fiscal impacts. 

BACKGROUND 
Each year the Board of Library Trustees appoints a Trustee to sit as President and a second Trustee to sit as 
Vice President for the following year. Section 3.04.040 Organization of Board of the City of Berkeley 
Municipal Code specifies that each year the Board of Library Trustees shall elect one of its members as 
President and another as Vice President for a term of one year, and until their successors are elected, unless 
their terms as member of BOLT expire sooner. 

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS 
Regular President and Vice President elections occurred on October 4, 2023, Trustee Roth was elected 
President and Trustee Hahn Vice President, to serve through the time of the next election in November 2023 
or until a successor is elected.   

Process 
Per the amended adopted Bylaws of the Board of Library Trustees, in July of each year, an information 
report shall be included on the Regular BOLT Meeting Agenda reviewing the rules for elections to the Offices 
of President and Vice President and calling for nominations to be made at the September BOLT meeting. 
At the September BOLT meeting, nominations shall be agendized as an Action item.  Trustees may nominate 
themselves or other Trustees for consideration for either or both Offices.  Nominations require a motion, 
but no second, and may be declined by the nominee.  Nominations taken “from the floor” allow all of the 
Trustees the opportunity to nominate others as well as themselves. 

At the October BOLT meeting, the Election of a President and Vice President shall be agendized as two 
separate Action Items, with the office of President to be voted upon first.  All Trustees accepting nomination 
for each office at the September meeting shall be listed.  A duly nominated Trustee may be listed for either 
or both offices but may only be elected to one.  The presiding officer shall call for any additional 
nominations (which may be declined) or declinations as the election for each office is taken up and, after 
closing nominations, shall allow each nominee an equal opportunity to speak on behalf of their own 
candidacy.  Nominees may then be discussed by the full BOLT membership, after which the presiding officer 
shall call for a public roll-call vote for that office.  Should a Trustee nominated to both the offices of 
President and Vice President be elected as President, their nomination for the office of Vice President shall 
be nullified.  The results of each vote shall be publicly announced and recorded in the minutes. 

Page 39 of 75



III Action Calendar 
Item A & B

In the event no President or Vice President is elected on the first round at the October meeting, the 
presiding officer may call for additional rounds of nominations, speaking, discussion and voting at the same 
meeting until the office is filled, or may postpone the election for that office to the next regular meeting, at 
which time the same procedures for nominations, speaking, discussion and voting shall be followed. 

The election of officers is a public process, with the vote announced at the conclusion of voting. The one-
year term is anticipated to commence on November 7, 2024. 

FUTURE ACTION 
Election of Officers will take place at the November meeting.  

CONTACT PERSON 
Tess Mayer, Director of Library Services, Library, 510-981-6195 

Attachments: 

1. Bylaws of the City of Berkeley Board of Library Trustees (BOLT)

Page 40 of 75



1 
Revised via BOLT resolution R23-056 on December 6, 2023 

Bylaws of the City of Berkeley Board of Library Trustees 
(BOLT) 

Berkeley Public Library strives to build community through its services, programs, and 
collections. The Library brings people together to share access to books, information, ideas, and 
culture. The Library is dedicated to building a community of lifelong learners who share an 
interest in personal and community development and enjoyment through literacies of all types. 
We serve a diverse community, and our services celebrate that diversity through a wide array 
of programs and collections that welcome, reflect, and include the diversity of Berkeley.  

Mission Statement:  
“We believe free, universal access to information is fundamental to a healthy democracy and 
that reading, and learning are key to a well-lived life. The Berkeley Public Library is a trusted 
hub of reading, learning, and community engagement.”  (May 2020) 

The Board of Library Trustees (“BOLT”) shall endeavor to ensure that the mission of the Library 
is upheld, as well as the American Library Association’s Bill of Rights and the Urban Libraries 
Council’s Statement on Race and Social Equity. 

BOLT is appointed by the Berkeley City Council to manage the Berkeley Public Library and all 
branch libraries (the “Library”) on behalf of the City and citizens of Berkeley, and to provide 
leadership, governance, and oversight.   

Article I - Organization 

Pursuant to Section 30 of the Charter of the City of Berkeley (the “Charter”) and Berkeley 
Municipal Code (“BMC”) Chapter 3.04, BOLT is the governing body of the Library.  BOLT 
delegates duties and powers to the Library Director. BOLT’s duties are enumerated in the 
Charter and BMC.  

1. Employ a Library Director who will be administratively responsible for the day-to-day
operation of the Berkeley Public Library.

2. All Duties prescribed in Section 30 of the Charter and BMC Chapter 3.04 including
(excerpts):

a. manage and control the Library;
b. make and enforce rules, regulations, and bylaws necessary for the

administration, governance and protection of the Library and Library property;
c. appoint officers and employees of the library as may be necessary to adequately

conduct the business of the library, and to prescribe their duties and powers;
d. recommend to the City Council the purchase or lease of real property.

III Action Calendar
Item A & B

Attachment 1 

Page 41 of 75



2 
Revised via BOLT resolution R23-056 on December 6, 2023 

3. Annually evaluate the job performance of the Library Director. 
 

4. Participate in the formation and adoption of a strategic plan for the Library and support 
achievement of such plan through the Library’s programs and budget.  
 

5. Develop budgetary priorities and recommend an annual budget for the operation and 
maintenance of the Library.  

 
6. Approve by vote of BOLT library purchases of materials, supplies or equipment of 

$50,000 or more, and contracts for services of $25,000 or more. 
 

7. Recommend to the City Council the purchase, lease and/or erection of buildings, 
quarters, and sites for the Library and its administration, and control all Library 
property.  
 

8. Communicate the mission, goals, needs, and other important information about the 
Library to the City of Berkeley and to the public. 
 

9. Make an annual report to the City Council describing the condition of the Library and a 
summary of BOLT’s work over the course of the past year, as well as any other reports 
and information that may be requested by the City Council.  

 
Article II - Membership  
 

1. Membership - The Board of Library Trustees shall consist of five (5) members (“Trustee” 
or “Trustees”), to be appointed by the City Council. All Trustees shall be residents of the 
City of Berkeley. 
 

2. Appointment - Four of the five Trustees shall be non-City Councilmembers, appointed 
by the City Council. The fifth Trustee shall be a Councilmember, also appointed by the 
City Council.  
 

3. Removal - Trustees shall be subject to removal from BOLT at the pleasure of the City 
Council, prior to the expiration of their appointed term.  
 

4. Majority Vote Required - A majority vote of all the members of the City Council shall be 
required to appoint a Trustee, fill any vacancy, or to remove any member from the 
board prior to the expiration of their term of office. 
 

5. Terms - The term of office of non-Councilmember Trustees shall be four (4) years. The 
term of the Councilmember Trustee shall expire on December 1 of the year their Council 
term expires.  

 

Page 42 of 75



3 
Revised via BOLT resolution R23-056 on December 6, 2023 

a. Each Trustee shall serve until a successor is appointed and qualified. 
 

b. Vacancies from whatever cause, [except temporary vacancies], shall be filled by 
the City Council for the unexpired term. 
 

5. Compensation - Trustees shall serve without compensation.  
 

6. Oath of Office - Before a Trustee participates as a voting member of BOLT, they must 
take the Oath of Office as required by law at the City of Berkeley Clerk’s Department or 
through BOLT Secretary at a regular BOLT meeting. Failure to take the Oath of office 
within 30 days of appointment is cause for automatic termination.  
 

7. Attendance Requirements - BOLT members shall attend all regular and special BOLT 
meetings. If a Trustee is unable to attend a meeting, that member shall notify the BOLT 
President and Secretary. 
 

8. Leaves of Absence - If a Trustee must be absent for a period, a leave of absence not to 
exceed three months may be granted by the Council; the Library Director shall submit a 
consent item to the Council agenda to approve the absence prior to the commencement 
of the period of absence, in compliance with the procedures in the Commissioners’ 
Manual 
 

9. Resignation Procedure - A Trustee wishing to resign shall submit a written resignation 
directly to the City Clerk and Secretary. Once submitted, a letter of resignation cannot 
be withdrawn. The effective date of the resignation is the date it is received by the City 
Clerk and Secretary unless a future date is indicated. The Secretary shall then notify 
BOLT and the City Council that a vacancy exists within three business days.   
 
 

Article III - General Responsibilities of Trustees 
 
Each Trustee shall: 
 

1. Abide by these Bylaws and all Library policy including, but not limited to, the Library’s 
conflict of interest statement, code of ethics, and confidentiality requirements. 
 

2. Abide by the requirements of the Brown Act and be familiar with Robert’s Rules of 
Order. 

 
3. Strive to build strong working relationships with other Trustees; during meetings, 

practice civility and decorum in discussions and debate, value each other’s time, and 
preserve order and decorum. 
 

Page 43 of 75



4 
Revised via BOLT resolution R23-056 on December 6, 2023 

4. Understand and periodically review existing Library Policies, including, but not limited 
to, the Board of Library Trustees Meeting Policy, Ethical Conduct Policy, and Privacy 
Policy.  

 
5. Understand and support basic library tenets including, but not limited to, the Library Bill 

of Rights, the Urban Libraries Council’s Statement on Race and Social Equity, The 
American Library Association’s Freedom to Read Statement, Intellectual Freedom, and 
patron privacy rights. 
 

6. Stay informed about BOLT and Library matters by reviewing all distributed minutes, 
reports, and documentation. 
 

7. Assist BOLT in carrying out its fiduciary responsibilities including, but not limited to, 
reviewing, and approving financial reports, the annual budget, and the annual audit 
report. 
 

8. Stay current on developments and trends related to public libraries and, when possible, 
participate in library conferences, workshops, and educational undertakings. 
 

9. Periodically visit the Library locations, Central and branches.  
 

10. Serve as an advocate for the Library through formal and informal communication 
opportunities with the public, businesses, civic groups, and other organizations. 
 

11. Strive to establish relationships with the Berkeley Public Library Foundation, the Friends 
of the Berkeley Public Library and other community organizations affiliated with the 
Library. 
 

12. Serve on ad hoc committees when assigned and complete associated projects.   
 

13. Abide by and uphold BOLT’s decisions.  
 
Article IV - Officers  
 
BOLT Officers shall be the President, Vice President, and Secretary.  BOLT shall elect one of its 
members President, and one of its members Vice-President. The President and Vice-President 
have full rights to make or second motions. The Director of Library Services shall be ex officio 
Secretary of the board.  
 

1. Terms of Office: 
a. The President and Vice President shall be elected at the first BOLT meeting in 

October of each year.   

Page 44 of 75



5 
Revised via BOLT resolution R23-056 on December 6, 2023 

b. The President and Vice President shall hold office for one (1) year terms, and 
until their successors are elected, unless their terms as member of BOLT expire 
sooner.  

c. No board member shall serve as President for more than two (2) consecutive 
terms if so elected; The Vice President may serve an unlimited number of 
consecutive one (1) year terms, if so elected. 

d. The Vice President does not assume the position of President if the President 
resigns from the Office of President or from BOLT, or is removed, but remains as 
the Vice President; however, the Vice President shall execute the President’s 
duties until a new President is elected 

e. In the event the Office of President or Vice President is vacated for any reason, a 
Special Election shall be completed within four months of such vacancy. 

f. There is no automatic or presumptive succession from the office of Vice 
President to President, but the Vice President may be nominated and elected to 
the position of President in the same manner as any other Trustee. 

g. If the offices of both the President and Vice President are vacated, the Trustee 
with greatest seniority on BOLT shall serve in the same manner as a Vice 
President, until such time as a President or Vice President is duly elected. 
 

2. Procedures for Regular and Special Elections of the President and Vice President -  
a. Regular Elections: 

i. In July of each year, an information report shall be included on the 
Regular BOLT Meeting Agenda reviewing the rules for elections to the 
Offices of President and Vice President and the duties of such Officers 
and calling for nominations to be made at the September BOLT meeting.  

ii. At the September BOLT meeting, nominations shall be agendized as an 
Action item.  Trustees may nominate themselves or other Trustees for 
consideration for either or both Offices.  Nominations require a motion, 
but no second, and may be declined by the nominee. 

iii. At the October BOLT meeting, the Election of a President and Vice 
President shall be agendized as two separate Action Items, with the office 
of President to be voted upon first.  All Trustees accepting nomination for 
each office at the September meeting shall be listed. A duly nominated 
Trustee may be listed for either or both offices but may only be elected 
to one. The presiding officer shall call for any additional nominations 
(which may be declined) or declinations as the election for each office is 
taken up and, after closing nominations, shall allow each nominee an 
equal opportunity to speak on behalf of their own candidacy.  Nominees 
may then be discussed by the full BOLT membership, after which the 
presiding officer shall call for a public roll-call vote for that office.  Should 
a Trustee nominated to both the offices of President and Vice President 
be elected as President, their nomination for the office of Vice President 
shall be nullified.  The results of each vote shall be publicly announced 
and recorded in the minutes. 

Page 45 of 75



6 
Revised via BOLT resolution R23-056 on December 6, 2023 

iv. In the event no President or Vice President is elected on the first round at
the October meeting, the presiding officer may call for additional rounds
of nominations, speaking, discussion and voting at the same meeting
until the office is filled, or may postpone the election for that office to the
next regular meeting, at which time the same procedures for
nominations, speaking, discussion and voting shall be followed.

b. Special Elections:
i. Special Elections for the office of President or Vice President,

necessitated by the resignation or removal of a President or Vice
President prior to the expiration of their term as an officer or as a
Trustee, shall follow the same three-meeting process as required for
Regular Elections, unless the resignation or removal takes place in the
three months preceding the date for a Regular October election, in which
case no Special Election shall be required.

3. Duties of the President
a. Serve as the Presiding Officer at all meetings and ensure BOLT’s work is

accomplished.
b. Ensure that all viewpoints are heard and are considered in a fair and impartial

manner, while exerting sufficient control to eliminate irrelevant, repetitious, or
otherwise unproductive discussion.

c. Ensure that the Charter, Berkeley Municipal Code, BOLT Bylaws and other BOLT
policies are followed. The President cannot make rules related to the conduct of
meetings; only the full BOLT may do so.

d. Approve the agenda prior to distribution. This is limited to the structure and
order of the agenda and does not grant the President the authority to remove
items submitted by other Trustees or staff.

e. Appoint Trustees to ad hoc subcommittees, subject to the approval of BOLT.
f. Sign correspondence on behalf of BOLT.
g. Represent BOLT before the City Council. Other Trustees may represent BOLT

before the City Council, but only with formal approval by motion and majority
vote of BOLT.

h. Approve final BOLT reports to Council, without modifying content that was
approved by the full BOLT.

4. Duties of The Vice President
a. Serve as the Presiding Officer in the absence of the President and perform all the

functions of the President in their absence or disability.
b. Perform such functions as may be assigned by the President or BOLT.

5. Duties of The Secretary
a. Keep a full account of all receipts and expenditures.
b. Keep a record and full minutes of all proceedings.

Page 46 of 75



7 
Revised via BOLT resolution R23-056 on December 6, 2023 

c. Fulfill all applicable duties of the Secretary, as defined in the City of Berkeley 
Commissioner’s Manual. 

 
ARTICLE V: Filling BOLT Vacancies   
 
Pursuant to Section 30 of the Charter of the City of Berkeley (the “Charter”), “five Library 
Trustees shall be appointed and may be removed by a vote of five members of the Council and 
one of such trustees must be appointed by the Council from its own members.” 
 
Per Section 3.04.010 of the Berkeley Municipal Code (“BMC”):   
 
“Vacancies on the Board of Library Trustees from whatever cause, except temporary vacancies 
as hereinafter provided, shall be filled by the City Council for the unexpired term. Each member 
of the board shall serve until his successor is appointed and qualified. A majority vote of all the 
members of the City Council shall be required to appoint a member to the board, or to fill any 
vacancy thereon, or to remove any member from the board prior to the expiration of his term 
of office.”  
 

1. Vacancies – When a BOLT vacancy has occurred or is planned to occur, the Board of 
Library Trustees can assist the City Council by facilitating a nomination process, by 
convening an ad hoc trustee nominating sub-committee to identify candidates. 

 
2. Process – BOLT shall adopt and update a policy for nomination that delineates 

candidate search objectives, provisions for the notice of the vacancy, application 
procedures, objective standards for the review of applications, a selection process, and 
any other pertinent information. 
 

 
Article VI - BOLT Meetings 
 

1. Brown Act: All meetings must be conducted in compliance with the Brown Act. 
 

2. Regular Meetings: A regular meeting of BOLT shall be held at least once a month, at a 
time and place as determined by resolution of BOLT.  
 

3. Agenda and Notice Requirements: Agendas for regular meetings of BOLT should follow 
the same content and notice requirements for agendas as enumerated in the 
Commissioners Manual, including: 

a. At least 72 hours before a regular meeting, the Secretary shall post an agenda 
containing a brief general description of each item of business to be transacted 
or discussed at the meeting, including items to be discussed in closed session, if 
any. 

b. Agenda titles should fully describe the issue or action to be discussed and/or 
taken.  

Page 47 of 75



8 
Revised via BOLT resolution R23-056 on December 6, 2023 

c. The agenda shall specify the time and location of the regular meeting. 
d. The agenda shall include, but is not limited to, the following: 

i. Call to Order 
ii. Public Comment on Non-Agendized, Consent, and Information Items 

iii. Comment from Unions 
iv. Approval of Minutes 
v. Consent Items  

vi. Action Items  
vii. Information Reports 

viii. Communications 
ix. Adjournment 

e. The agenda must be posted in the following locations: 
i. On the bulletin board at Old City Hall at 2134 Martin Luther King Jr. Way 

ii. At the Central Library and all Branch Library locations 
iii. The location where the meeting will be held if not held in one of the 

Library branches 
iv. On the Berkeley Public Library website 

f. The agenda and accompanying information for a meeting shall be approved by 
the President, pursuant to Section 3(d) of these Bylaws.  

i. An item may be placed on the meeting agenda for BOLT consideration by 
any Board member by submitting it in person at a Regular BOLT Meeting 
or electronically to the BOLT President and Secretary, for consideration at 
the next Regular BOLT meeting.  

ii. If an item is received after a BOLT meeting agenda has already been 
published, it will be considered at the next Regular BOLT Meeting for 
which appropriate notice can be given. 

iii. Emergency items may only be added to an agenda at a BOLT meeting in 
accordance with the Brown Act, Gov. Code Section 54954.2(b).  
 

4. Special meetings 
a. Special meetings of BOLT may be called at any time by the President or by any 

three (3) Trustees, by written notice at least twenty-four (24) hours before the 
time of the proposed meeting, or at any time by the President with the written 
consent of all BOLT members.  

b. Notice and agenda requirements for Special Meetings shall conform to the 
Commissioner’s Manual. 

c. Subcommittee meetings are considered Special Meetings for the purposes of 
noticing and agenda requirements.  
 

5. Meeting Conduct: All BOLT Meetings shall be conducted according to the Board of 
Library Trustees Meeting Policy (see appendix). 

a. In addition, Library Trustees are expected to clarify to the public and staff 
appropriate communication channels related to employee grievances as 
designated by labor union/City of Berkeley agreements.  

Page 48 of 75



9 
Revised via BOLT resolution R23-056 on December 6, 2023 

b. Trustees shall not engage in public negotiations that may contradict or 
jeopardize agreements and/or contracts between the City and other entities, 
such as businesses, community organizations, labor unions or other such 
organizations. 

 
6. Cancellation of Meetings 

Upon notification that a quorum of Board members will not be present at a meeting, the 
President may elect to cancel or reschedule the meeting. Public notice of cancelled or 
rescheduled meetings shall conform to the Commissioner’s Manual. 
 

 
Article VII – General Conduct of Trustees 

1. By accepting board membership, a trustee is committing to honor the following code of 
conduct:  

a. As a trustee, I shall do my utmost to ensure that Berkeley Public Library performs 
its mission and achieves its goals. As a trustee I agree to:  

b. Act with honesty and integrity.  
c. Support in a positive manner all actions taken by the board even when I am in a 

minority position on such actions. I recognize that decisions of the board can be 
made only by a majority vote at a board meeting and respect the majority 
decisions of the board, while retaining the right to seek changes through ethical 
and constructive channels. 

d. Participate in annual strategic planning retreats and work sessions to evaluate 
the Library Director; participate in board self-evaluation programs; and 
participate in board development workshops, seminars, and other educational 
events that enhance my skills as a board member.  

e. Keep confidential information confidential.  
f. Exercise my authority as a trustee only when acting in a meeting with the full 

board or as I am delegated by the board.  
g. Work with and respect the opinions of my peers who serve this board and leave 

my personal prejudices out of all board discussions.  
h. Always act for the good of the organization and represent the interests of all 

people served by the organization. 
i. Always represent this organization in a positive and supportive manner.  
j. Observe the parliamentary procedures and display courteous conduct in all 

board and committee meetings.  
k. Refrain from intruding on administrative issues that are the responsibility of 

management, except to monitor the results of the organization.  
l. Accept my responsibility for providing oversight of the financial condition of the 

organization.  
m. Avoid acting in a way that represents a conflict of interest between my position 

as a board member and my personal or professional life, even if those actions 
appear to provide a benefit for the organization. This includes using my position 

Page 49 of 75



10 
Revised via BOLT resolution R23-056 on December 6, 2023 

for the advantage of my friends and business associates. If such a conflict does 
arise, I will declare that conflict before the board and recuse myself from 
consideration, discussion and voting on matters in which I have conflict. I agree 
to abide by the Berkeley Conflict of Interest Code and the conflict of interest 
provisions in the Commissioner’s Manual. 

n. Develop familiarity with and follow City of Berkeley and Berkeley Public Library’s 
policies related to ethical conduct of staff and officials. 

o. Abide by these board Bylaws.  

2. BOLT members may interact with the public; however, if trustees are contacted by the 
public outside of a meeting, commissioners should encourage them to send their 
comments to the secretary for distribution to all commissioners or come to a BOLT 
meeting and speak at public comment. This will allow the full board to hear and 
consider all pertinent information and points of view. 
 

3. Any time a commissioner uses their commission title or references their membership on 
the Board of Library Trustees when speaking publicly, they must state the following: “I 
am speaking in an individual capacity and not representing the Board of Library Trustees 
or the City of Berkeley.” 

 
4. Each trustee has the obligation to work cooperatively with other trustees. Trustees 

should exercise self-discipline and strive always to be objective, fair, and courteous with 
each other as well as with staff and the public. A healthy respect for the time of other 
trustees, staff, and the public is of critical importance. 

 
Article VIII - Quorum and Resolution Adoption of the Berkeley BOLT 

1. A quorum of BOLT shall consist of a majority of Actually Appointed members of the 
Board. No action shall be taken by BOLT without a quorum present.  

 
2. The number of affirmative votes needed to pass a motion is the same number that 

constitutes a quorum.  
 
Article IX - Ad Hoc Subcommittees  

1. From time-to-time BOLT or the President, with confirmation from BOLT, may appoint 
two BOLT Trustees to serve as a temporary subcommittee with a finite, single-purpose 
purview, and a tenure of up to one year, as established by BOLT.  
 

2. Ad hoc Subcommittee meetings are Special Meetings and must comply with the Brown 
Act and the Commissioner’s Manual. Trustees who are not members of the Ad Hoc 
Subcommittee may not attend Subcommittee meetings, even as observers.   

 
3. Subcommittees are tasked with the study of a specific issue and with making a 

recommendation to BOLT. BOLT has the opportunity for input when the subcommittee 

Page 50 of 75



11 
Revised via BOLT resolution R23-056 on December 6, 2023 

reports its findings and makes recommendations. BOLT has final decision-making 
authority on the disposition of the subcommittee’s work. 

 
4. Only Trustees may serve on Ad hoc Subcommittees; however, Subcommittees should 

seek input and advice from the public. 
 
Article X - The Director 

1. Duties of the Director  
a. Duties of the Director shall be to oversee the day-to-day operation of the Library.  
b. In the Director’s discretion, specific tasks may be delegated to a member of the 

Library Staff.  
c. The Director’s authority includes the approval of purchases of materials, supplies 

or equipment up to the amount of $50,000 and contracts for services up to the 
amount of $25,000.   

d. The Director shall also have the authority to hire employees of the Berkeley 
Public Library and to negotiate with the various collective bargaining units on 
ongoing issues. 

e. The Library Director shall act as secretary as defined in Article IV of these Bylaws.  
 
Article XI - Amendments of the Bylaws of the Berkeley BOLT 

1. Amendments to these Bylaws may be adopted by a majority vote at any regular meeting 
of BOLT. Proposed amendments must appear as Action Items on a Regular BOLT 
Meeting Agenda.  

 
 

Page 51 of 75



Page 52 of 75



 

 

IV Information Calendar 
 Item A 

 INFORMATION REPORTS 
 October 10, 2024 

 

2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-6195 ● Website: www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org 

 

To: Board of Library Trustees 

From: Nneka Gallaread, Administrative and Fiscal Services Manager 

Subject: Fiscal Year to Date: 2024 – 4th Quarter Budget Report 

INTRODUCTION 
Library fiscal year 2024 results at end of the fourth quarter (ending June 2024) by Fund are as follows: 

 Revenue 
Expenditures (excluding 

encumbrances) 

Fund Actual 4Q 
Year-over-

Year Actual 4Q 
Year-over-

Year 
Library Tax (101) $24,933,941 3.5% $23,616,377 17.8% 
Grants (103) $112,686 37.5% $112,514 36.3% 
Friends & Gifts (104) $167,736 1.1% $145,013 29.3% 
Foundation (105) $165,717 1,113.4% $234,069 681.2% 

BACKGROUND 
FY 2024 is an annual budget that was adopted by the Board of Library Trustees on June 7, 2023 via approval of Resolution No.: 
23-029.   

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS 
LIBRARY TAX FUND (101) 

The Library Tax Fund includes revenue derived from the dedicated library tax and miscellaneous revenue. At the end of 
the fourth quarter, revenues at $24,933,941 increased by 3.5%. Fourth quarter year-to-date revenue from library tax 
receipts ended up year-over at $24,917,220 and was 3.5% above the FY23Q4 received amount.  

Library Tax Fund expenditures excluding encumbrances for period was $23,616,377, increased 17.8% from the prior 
year period, an increase of $3,560,040. In comparison to the prior fiscal year period, fourth quarter combined salary and 
wage costs were up by 9.2%. Excluding encumbrances, non-labor year-over costs rose $2,145,320 to $6,828,346.  

 

GRANTS FUND (103) 

The Grants Fund is typically composed of funding from California State Library administered programs for the California 
Library Literacy Services (CLLS) program, the Library Services and Technology Act, as well as any other governmental or 
private grant awarded to the Library. Currently, we have two grant programs in the Fund is the California Library Literacy 
Services that targets it support to the BerkeleyREADS adult literacy program and Lunch at the Library that provides 
lunch, with daily programming, during summer months for children and young adults under the age of 18. 

At the end of the fourth quarter, revenues at $112,686 increased by 37.5% and expenditures at $112,514 increased by 
36.3%. 

Page 53 of 75

file://LIBSTORAGE02/Admin/Admin%20Assistant/BOLT/Templates%20and%20Forms/www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org


IV Information Calendar 
 Item A 

 
BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
INFORMATION REPORT 
FYTD24 – 4th Quarter YTD Budget Report Page 2 
 
 

 

 

FRIENDS & GIFTS FUND (104) 

The Gifts Fund includes monies received through donations from the Friends of the Berkeley Public Library, the 
generosity of many individuals and organizations, and trusts.  

The Fund’s fourth quarter receipts were comprised of $167,736 from Friends; representing all of the FY 2024 award. 
Expenditures at $145,013 increased on a year-over basis by 0.6%, as we continue to expand programing options. The 
Friends continuous support programs that spanned the interests of all ages and sustained the Summer Reading and 
Racial Justice Advisory Group Staff Reads program. 

 

FOUNDATION FUND (105) 

This Fund captures all funding support received either directly from the Berkeley Public Library Foundation or passed 
through the Foundation.  

As of the fourth quarter, revenue of $165,717 increased on a year-over basis by 1,113% with expenditures of $234,069 
for previous years’ approved funding supported Library programs, increased on a year-over basis by 681.2%. 

 
SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS EXPENSES 

Overall expenditures increased by $3,826,985 or 18.9% to $24,107,973 ending the fourth quarter as compared to the 
same period last year through the fourth quarter.   

 
CONTACT PERSON 

Nneka Gallaread, Administrative and Fiscal Services Manager (email: ngallaread@berkeleyca.gov ) 

 
Attachments: 

1. 4Q-FYTD 2024 Revenues by Fund 
2. 4Q-FYTD 2024 Expenditures by Fund 
3. Library Tax Fund (101): 5-Year Fund Analysis 
4. Grant Fund (103): 5-Year Fund Analysis 
5. Friends & Gifts Fund (104): 5-Year Fund Analysis 
6. Foundation Fund (105): 5-Year Fund Analysis 

 

Page 54 of 75

mailto:ngallaread@berkeleyca.gov


 
 

 
A
t
t
a
c
h
m
e
n
t
 
1
 

4Q
-FY

T
D

 2024 R
EV

E
N

U
E

S B
Y

 FU
N

D
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

Page 55 of 75



Page 56 of 75



              4Q
-FY

T
D

 2024 E
X

PE
N

D
IT

U
R

E
S B

Y
 FU

N
D

  
 

A
t
t
a
c
h
m
e
n
t
 
2
 

  

 

            

 

Page 57 of 75



Page 58 of 75



              4Q
-FY

T
D

 2024 E
X

PE
N

D
IT

U
R

E
S B

Y
 FU

N
D

  
 

A
t
t
a
c
h
m
e
n
t
 
2
 

  

 

Page 59 of 75



Page 60 of 75



              4Q
-FY

T
D

 2024 E
X

PE
N

D
IT

U
R

E
S B

Y
 FU

N
D

  
 

A
t
t
a
c
h
m
e
n
t
 
2
 

  

   

 
 

Page 61 of 75



Page 62 of 75



 
L

IB
R

A
R

Y
 T

A
X

 FU
N

D
 (101): 5-Y

ear Fund A
nalysis 

  
A
t
t
a
c
h
m
e
n
t
 
3 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

Page 63 of 75



Page 64 of 75



 
G

R
A

N
T

 FU
N

D
 (103): 5-Y

ear Fund A
nalysis 

  
A
t
t
a
c
h
m
e
n
t
 
4 

 
 

 

Page 65 of 75



Page 66 of 75



 
FR

IE
N

D
S A

N
D

 G
IFT

 FU
N

D
 (104): 5-Y

ear Fund A
nalysis 

  
A
t
t
a
c
h
m
e
n
t
 
5 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 

Page 67 of 75



Page 68 of 75



 
FO

U
N

D
A

T
IO

N
 FU

N
D

 (105): 5-Y
ear Fund A

nalysis 
  

A
t
t
a
c
h
m
e
n
t
 
6 

 

 

Page 69 of 75



Page 70 of 75



 

 

IV Information Calendar 
    Item C     

 INFORMATION REPORTS 
 October 10, 2024 

 

2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-6195 ● Website: www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org 

 

 

To: Board of Library Trustees 

From: Tess Mayer, Director of Library Services 

Subject: Director’s Report 

 

Vacancies:  

Position Title Location FTE Status 

Communication Specialist (new) Administration 1 Pending recruitment 
Communication Program Manager           
(new) Administration 1               

           
Recruitment initiated 

Library Aide Circulation 3.75 Pending interviews 

Library Assistant Collections 0.75 Pending processing of changes 

Supervising Librarian (new) Tool Library 1 Pending recruitment 

Library Assistant (new) West 1.5 Pending recruitment 

Tool Lending Specialist (new) Tool Library 1 
 
Pending recruitment  

Supervising Library Assistant THPS 1 Recruitment initiated  
 

Including the new positions that have been added over the past seven months, the Library has a vacancy 
rate of 7%.   

 

Justice in Libraries Training:  All Staff  
Now that the first cohort of staff, the Library Council (supervisors and managers), has participated in the 
Justice in Libraries training provided by Mia Henry, the training has begun for all staff and will take place in 
October, November and December.   

This multi-part, self-paced online training offers opportunities for more in-depth examination of questions 
and concerns associated with anti-racism work and covers such content areas as “connecting identity with 
power,” understanding the five faces of oppression, resistance, and solidarity.   

Staff are invited to participate in affinity groups that are broken into three sections: Black and African 
Diaspora, Non-Black People of the Global Majority, and White or people who do not identify as a Person of 
Color.  These groups are intended to provide support and space to process for everyone throughout the 
duration of the training.    
 
 

Page 71 of 75

file://LIBSTORAGE02/Admin/Admin%20Assistant/BOLT/Templates%20and%20Forms/www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org


IV Information Calendar 
Item C    

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
INFORMATION REPORT 
Director’s Report Page 2 

2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-6195 ● Website: www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org 

Storytime Band Kindergarten Library Card Drive 

Children’s Librarian Michael Kwende, along with the other members of the Storytime Band, Juan Castille and 
Donovan Russell, and volunteers Tienne and Mr. Tim, have initiated their fall Kindergarten Library Card 
Drive.  They have visited John Muir, Malcolm X, and have Ruth Acty and Thousand Oaks scheduled as well. 
Zoe Williams, the School Librarian at John Muir, has spoken with all elementary school librarians who are 
checking in with their kindergarten teachers to schedule dates for the bands visit to their school sites.  On 
the visits, the band reads stories, makes music and issues library cards.  The programs are very interactive, 
with kids engaged in the music, dancing, talking to the band, and even singing their own songs on occasion.  
The Storytime Band got a write-up in the BUSD newsletter that goes out to every family in the District after 
the first of these events (pictured below). 

The Storytime Band is performing at the Freight the first Thursdays (The Band will also be on break from this 
until January), Frances Albrier Community Center on the third Thursday of the month and visiting the BUSD 
Kindergarten classes on the second and fourth each month.  

Thanks to a wonderful partnership established by the Storytime Band, the group provided outreach 
programs at a number of City parks this summer: Frances Albrier Community Center, Strawberry Creek Park, 
Live Oak Park, and Virginia-McGee Totland.  As part of this partnership, the Storytime Band no longer has to 
submit applications for park use or sound permits. These are now handled by Parks staff. They also provide 
on-site staff assistance, chairs, access to electricity for the PA system, and other equipment. Congratulations 
and thank you to the Band for their leadership in forging this new partnership. 

Page 72 of 75

file://LIBSTORAGE02/Admin/Admin%20Assistant/BOLT/Templates%20and%20Forms/www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org


IV Information Calendar 
 Item C     
 
BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
INFORMATION REPORT 
Director’s Report Page 3 
 

2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-6195 ● Website: www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org 

Library Card Design Contest Winners 

 
The BPL held a Library Card design contest this Spring to promote kindness and libraries with new library 
cards for your wallet.  This September, the Berkeley Public Library is supporting Library Card Sign-up Month 
by featuring five new card designs.  This is a great time to get a new library card! 

Contest Winner: Marissa Wu (they) 

“I was inspired by the theme of "kindness" to imagine what Berkeley might look like if life was centered 
around the public library, reflecting the library's values of community care, diversity, and joy. I believe that a 
society that prioritizes kindness would be a place where multigenerational community can flourish, 
affordable housing and clean transportation are abundant, and all neighbors take care of each other. 
Additionally, as public libraries around the country are facing disinvestment, I wanted to depict a world in 
which the opposite was true, and our public institutions were fully supported and thriving.” 

Finalist: Andra Weber  

"I was inspired by all the little kids I see visiting the North Berkeley Library where they flip joyfully through 
books, play in the atrium, and soak in all the library goodness. I noticed the library didn't have a card design 

Page 73 of 75

file://LIBSTORAGE02/Admin/Admin%20Assistant/BOLT/Templates%20and%20Forms/www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org
https://www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org/2024-library-card-design-contest


IV Information Calendar 
 Item C     
 
BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
INFORMATION REPORT 
Director’s Report Page 4 
 

2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-6195 ● Website: www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org 

that might appeal to kids. So I created the design to remind children of all ages, that the library is for 
everyone, kindness can be as simple as helping each other return library books and everyone deserves space 
to enjoy a good story...even cats and dogs!" 

Finalist: Abigail Mullen  

“I was going through a unit in school where we were learning about the cruelness committed to our First 
People throughout the United States. I had been thinking about what to submit regarding kindness when I 
came across an article in my school binder about First People. I wanted to submit an art piece that 
represented kindness no matter heritage or skin color, global kindness. I have been so inspired by all 
activists that work so hard to make the world a better place and hope I represented that in my submission. 
Love and kindness on a global level.” 

Finalist: Alejandra Martínez 

“My inspiration for the mixed media artwork is to show that humanity is kindness. We all come in difference 
shapes and colors. Displaying unity and kindness in color.” 

  

 
  

Page 74 of 75

file://LIBSTORAGE02/Admin/Admin%20Assistant/BOLT/Templates%20and%20Forms/www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org


IV Information Calendar 
 Item C     
 
BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
INFORMATION REPORT 
Director’s Report Page 5 
 

2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-6195 ● Website: www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org 

Finalist: Ronald Chung 

“I decided to communicate the word and meaning of "kindness" by utilizing both symbols and letters.  I 
settled on my interpretation of the Berkeley Public Library building covered with kindness symbols graffiti 
and an Aesop quote (emanating from inside the Library). 

Ultimately, I imagined the user action of going to the library, selecting a book and then pulling out the library 
card to check out.  During the check out process, I want the user to be strongly reminded to be kind the rest 
of the day.” 

 

CONTACT PERSON 
Tess Mayer, Director of Library Services, Library, 510-981-6195 
 
 

Page 75 of 75

file://LIBSTORAGE02/Admin/Admin%20Assistant/BOLT/Templates%20and%20Forms/www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org

	I. PRELIMINARY MATTERS
	II. CONSENT CALENDAR
	III. ACTION CALENDAR
	IV. INFORMATION REPORTS
	V. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS
	VI. ADJOURNMENT
	State of the Collection Presentation_2024 09 04.pdf
	Collection Services
	Collection Services Team
	Collection Practices
	Collection  Statistics
	Collection Statistics - Additions
	Collection Diversity
	Fiscal Year FY24
	FY 24 Continued
	FY 24 Continued
	Fiscal 24 Continued
	FY 25 Projects
	Slide Number 12

	ADP99ED.tmp
	Amy Roth, President

	2024 10 10 Regular BOLT Meeting Schedule for 2025_v2 Nowruz added.pdf
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	ADPB676.tmp
	Library Tax Fund (101)
	The Library Tax Fund includes revenue derived from the dedicated library tax and miscellaneous revenue. At the end of the fourth quarter, revenues at $24,933,941 increased by 3.5%. Fourth quarter year-to-date revenue from library tax receipts ended up...
	Library Tax Fund expenditures excluding encumbrances for period was $23,616,377, increased 17.8% from the prior year period, an increase of $3,560,040. In comparison to the prior fiscal year period, fourth quarter combined salary and wage costs were u...
	GRANTS Fund (103)
	The Grants Fund is typically composed of funding from California State Library administered programs for the California Library Literacy Services (CLLS) program, the Library Services and Technology Act, as well as any other governmental or private gra...
	At the end of the fourth quarter, revenues at $112,686 increased by 37.5% and expenditures at $112,514 increased by 36.3%.
	FRIENDS & GIFTS FUND (104)
	The Gifts Fund includes monies received through donations from the Friends of the Berkeley Public Library, the generosity of many individuals and organizations, and trusts.
	The Fund’s fourth quarter receipts were comprised of $167,736 from Friends; representing all of the FY 2024 award. Expenditures at $145,013 increased on a year-over basis by 0.6%, as we continue to expand programing options. The Friends continuous sup...
	Foundation Fund (105)
	SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS EXPENSES
	Overall expenditures increased by $3,826,985 or 18.9% to $24,107,973 ending the fourth quarter as compared to the same period last year through the fourth quarter.
	CONTACT PERSON

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



